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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

TO: THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report oo the Audit of the Financial Statements

Quulified opinion:

We have audited the financial statements of WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT
COMPANY - A Saudi Joint Stock Company - (the “"Company™), which comprise the statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2020, the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
shareholders” equity and cash flows for the year thea ended, and notes 1o the financisl statements, including
& summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, except for the effects of the matters deseribad in the Basis for Qualified Opinion section of
our report, the sccompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial
position of the Compeny as st 31 December 2020 and its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended in accordunce with International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the
Kingdom of Saudi Arabin and other standards and pronouncements issued by Saudi Organization for
Certified Public Accountants (SOCPA)

Basis for Qualified Opinion:

We were not able 1o obtain sufficient conviction regarding to the validity of the principles and assumptions
used i the valustion of the valuation of Property, plant and equipment as of December 51, 2020, whiase
book value i SAR 05,540,216, Also, through the altermative procedures, we were not able to obtain about
the impairment of property, plant and equipenent as of December 31, 2020, and as a resuli we were unable to
determine whether it is necessary to make any adjustments relaied to the balance of property, plant and
equipment in the stetement of financial pesition, and the items of statements of comprehensive income,
changes in sharcholder's equity and cash flows.

We conducted our asdit in accordance with Intemnational Standards on Auditing (“1SAs™) that are endorsed
in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabin. Our responsibilities under those standirds are further described in the
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our mporl We are
independent of the Company In accordance with the professional code of condust omd ethics that are
endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements, and we
tave fulfilied our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the
sudit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriste to provide a basks for our qualified opinion,

Materinl Uncertainty Related to Going Coneern:

We draw attention 1o note (2-d) to the financial stitements, which indicates that the company incurred a loss
of approximately SAR 12.4 and 25.4 million for the year ended December 31, 2020 und 2019, respectively.
In addition 1o the Company's current liabilities s on December 31, 2020 exceeding its current nssets by
SAR 15,836,730, These conditions or events indicate that a material unceriainty exists thal may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue a8 a going concerm. Our opinion is not modified in
respect of thess matters, pudt, Tax & consitnnts
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Spudi Joint Stock Company)

Eey Audit Matters: - _ _

K.ey audil matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the finencial statements of the current year. These matters were addressed in the context n!'wr'
sudit of the financial statements as & whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters, In addition 10 the matter :Im:r!lmi in the Pasis for ﬂlunllﬁnd. Opinion
section and Materia] Unceruinty Related to Going Concem section, we have determined the matiers
described below to be the key audil matters to be communicated m our report

—

| Revenue _
Refer to notes £3-16) for the accounting policy and note (23) for related disclosures, === 2.4
‘Key audit matter How the mutter was addressed in our sudit

“The revenue mainly composed of revenue from | We performed the follewing procedures relation o
sales of food products of pasta, potaloes and | revenue:

R— « Evaluating the appropristencss of the

. i ciderad ; company's asccounting policies  relaied to
RS PECEIN. 18 COR M.Eﬂ;nﬂ revenue recognition, s well a5 evaluating
:T;ﬁﬁi; mr:lun-.::ﬁ are mg{s i e compliance of these policies with accounting
company's performance, and it follows that standards.

there are inherenl risks by proving revenwes &t | Evalusting the design. implemantation und

more than their actual valee. testing of the efficiency of the company’s

caomtrol procedures tncluding anti-fraud control
procedures 1 establish revenue in accordance
| with company policy.

» Obtained an understanding of the noture of
revenue contracts used by the Company for
each significant revenue stream, tested o
sample of representative sales contracts o
confirm our understanding and assess whether
or not management’s application of [FRS 13
requirements was in sccordance with the
pecounting standard,

i e Tegted relevant processes and  controls
established by management W ensure
appropriate recognition of revenue;

We also reviewed the adequacy of the Company's

disclosures included in the accompanying financial
statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continuad)
WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Sawndi Joint Stock Company)
Key Andit Matters (continued):

Financial instruments

Refer to notes (3-8, 3-18) for the accounting policy and notes {1 1) for relisted disclosures.

Key audit matter

How ihe matter was addresied in oor aedit

As at 31 December 2020 carrying value of trade
receivebles amounted to SAR 30 million (31
December 2019: SAR 26.7 million) and the
provision for expected credit losses of trding
gocount receivables amounted to SAR 94
million (31 December 2019; SAR 8.3 million).

The Company assesses al each reporting date
whetlser the financial assets carried at amoriized
eost are  credit-impaired. The Company's
management bas applied o simplified expected
eredit Joss (“ECL™) model to determine the
allowance for impairment of account
| receivebles. The ECL model invalves the use of
| various assumptions, macros-economic factors
| and stady of historical wrends relating 1o the
| Company’s  account receivables collections
Exparience.

We considered this a key audit matter due to the
judgemenss and estimates involved in the
application of the expected credit loss model.

We performed the following procedures in relation to
Finencial mstruments:

s Compared the ECL model developed by
management 1o that required by IFRS 9 and
reviewed the reasonableness of the methodology
in comparison to sccepted best proctice. We also
account the arthmetical accuracy of the model;

o Tested key assumptions such as those used 1o
calculate the likelihood of defaull and the
subsequent loss on defsult, by comparing to
historical data. We also considered the
incorporation  of forward  locking  fictors
{predominantly sconomic) to reflect the impact
of future events on expecied credit losses;

* We compared the company’s provision policy
and the expected credit loss methodology with
the requirements set out in IFRS 5,

# Underztand and evaluate the design  and
effectivaness of the intermal control controls that

the company applies to the trading sccounts
receivables evele.

We mlso reviewed the adequacy of the
s disclosures included in the

accompanying financial staiements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS REPORT (Continued)
WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{ A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Other Information:

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report but does not include the financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon,
The annual report is expected to be made available to us after the date of this auditors” repart.

Ot opinion on the Tinancial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financiel statements, our respansibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available nnd, in doing so, consider whether the other informution i
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated.

When we read the annual report and conclude that there is a material misstatement therein, we are required
o communicate the matter 1o those charged with govemance.

Responsibilities of Manapement and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Staiemenis:
Munagement is responsible for the preparation and fair presemtation of the finuncial stalements in
accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi
Arabia and other standards and promouncements isswed by SOCPA. Regulations for Companies and
Company’s By-laws, and for such internal control as mansgement determines is necessary (o enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

in preparing the financisl statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue a¢ a going concem, disclosing, as applicable, metters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liguidnte the Company or t0 cense
operations, or has no realistic alternative but 1o do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company”s financinl reporting process,

Auditors” Responsibilities for the Audii of the Financial Statements:

Ouir objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financinl statements ns o whale are fres
from materinl misstatemnent, whether due to fransd or arror, and 10 issue an suditor’s report that includes ouwr
opinion, Reasonable sssurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guaruntee that an audit condusted in
accordance with 15As that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia will always detect a material
missiatemnent when it exists, Misstatements can anse from fraud or error and are considered material If

mdividually or in the aggregate, they could ressonably be expected 1o influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with [SAs that are endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabis, we exercise
professional judgment and meintain professionn] skepticism throughout the sudit. We also:

= |dentify and assess the risks of material misstalement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform andit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain sudit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting & material
misstatement resuiting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
eoifusion, forgery, intentional amissions, misrepresentations, or the override of intermal control.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)
WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

a.ud:m s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements (Continued):
Oidain an understanding of intemal control relevant 1o the audit in onder fo design sudit procedures that
are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinlon on ihe
effectivencss of the Company™s internal control,

«  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonubleness of sccounting estimates
and reluted discloswres made by management.

= Conclude on the appropristeness of management's use of the going concemn basis of sccounting and,
based on the awudit evidence obiined, whether o material uncertainty exisls related © events of
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's ability to continue as & going concern. If
we conclude thal a material uncerininty exists, we ure required 1o draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements er, if such disclosures are inasdequate, to modify owr
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the awdit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s repodt.
However, fitare events or conditions may cause the Company to cease io conlinue 88 4 going concern.

e Evaluste the oversll prescniation, structure and content of the fimencial statements, including the
disclosures, snd whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that schieves fair presentation.

We communicaie with those charged with govermance regarding, among other matiers, the plumed scope
and timing of the sudit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit,

We also provide those charged with govemance with o statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicale with them all relationships und other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, relnied
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with those charged with povernance, we determine those matters that were
of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current vear and are therefore the key
sudit matters, We describe these matiers in our sudiior’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure aboot the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that & matter should not
be communicnted in our report because the ndverse consequences of doing so would reasonubly be expected
o outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT (Continued)

WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

Report an Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements:

Paragraph (135) of the Companies Law requires the suditor to include in his report any violations of the
Regulations for Companies and Company's By-laws. During our audit of the financial statements, we did
not found that the Company is in violations of the Companies Regulntions and the Company's Articles of

Associnlion,
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2020

N

The accompany notes are integrated par of these financial staements

1

{Sandi Rivals) T
Note 31 December 2020 (Restated)
~ON CURRENT ASSETS
'p”,..,,m,, ,;.Lm*mﬂ eguipment’s, net 5 G5 540,216 102,474,700
Right of used Assets, fiet 6 2,744,955 2,892,570
Intangible Assets, net 7 f04, 402 1,076,314
Real cslate investments, net ] 0,452,824 10,1 19456
Investmients at fair value through other comprehensive incOMme 10 673,826 389,466
TOTAL NON CURRENT ASSETS 110,306,223 117,052,515
CURRENT ASSETS
Accounts receivable, net 11 20,630,795 |49 B4R
Iveniory, Het 12 21,248,751 17,006,659
Prepayments and other debit balances, nat I3 6019977 B9dl 822
Duse From Related Panties 14 725,876 THOEIR
Cash and cash equivalents 15 2,391 REO 1,723,876
TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS 21,017,019 46,803 843
TOTAL ASSETS 161,323,242 164,046,358
s RS
SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Capital | 77,170,350 200,000,000
Fair villise reserve [§1] (581 473) (BB6,231)
Accurmubmod Iosses (14,243,531) _ (123,637.776)
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY 62,344,946 75,695,991
LIABRILITIES
NON CURRENT LIABILITES
Non-current portion of the losn guarssiee provision - relued party 8- 4,950,407 5850477
Non-current portion of long term government koan 17 16,000,000 15,000,000
Non-current portion of lease obligations & 2,416,127 1,530,244
Employees’ defined benelis liabilities I8 8758013 7257345
TOTAL NON CURRENT LIABILITIES 32,124,547 40,637,966
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Current portion of the loan guarantee provision - related party B-e 2,250,183 2212913
Troding accounts payvahie 34,726,057 24,719,085
Current portion of lease obligations 6 419,348 151,023
Owersubseribed paynhile 3,258,720 3,258,720
Accrued expenses and other credit balances 19 4,927 639 5601 B93
Accrued dividend distribution 2l 1,194,822 1,198,305
Carrem portion of kong term government loan I7 12,000,000 3,000,000
Sales provisions 20 | 684,706 1,264,181
Zakut estimated provision . 6,392,274 4,046,301
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES 66,853,749 47, 712401
TOTAL LIABILITIES 98,976,296 85,350,367
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 161,323,242 164,046,354
¢ Manager CEO Authorized Me

e ey
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Suudi Joint Stock Company)

pa
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 3! DECEMBER 2020

{Saudi Riyals)

Note 2020 2019 MRestuied)
Sales, net 3 §3.777.853 52 416,966
Cost of sales {64,363 413) (66,038, 166)
Gross profit of operating income 19414430 16,758,800
Administrative and peneral expenses 24 (9,145,073) (.951.177)
Selling nrad distributing expenses 25 {16, 763,914} {17.289.675)
Nt loss from the main operation (6,494,.57T) i 10.481,052)
Provision for loan guarantes in an associate B-Iz (8,063,390
Fair value losses from investments at finir value
through profit or loss B-D (4,354, 480)
Impairment gains / {lossest in the wilue of real
estate investment -1 333368 (1,008,252)
Proviskon for expected credit losses 1,13 (1,326.059) (1,175,915)
Provision fer impairment of inventory value 12 (606,477 -
Provision Tor slow moviing items 12 (1,426484) (927,60
Finance charges 17-1 (630,004 {300,000)
Fingnce cost B (1HR49T) {190,020
Cither nevenue 26 1,482,535 2420, 198
Net loss for the year before Zakat estimated (B.856,191) (24,080,971)
Zakat estimate i (3,522.897) {1,288,762)
et loss for the year (11,379,088) (25,369,713)
QTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME:
Items thut cannot be reclassified to profit or luss
in subsequent periods;
Met change in fair value investments 10 B4 360 (B3.305)
Actuarial losses defined benefits linbilities 18 {1,056317) (371,400)
Tatal other comprehensive loss for the year (971,957) (455,708)
Mopt camprebensive loss for e year (13.351,045) (25825438)
Loss per share:
From net boss from the main operation a7 (0.84) (1.36)
From net loss for the year {1.60) (3.2%)

“Manager CE Autho
"\ {n M

/ "{f <

The accompany noles are ':mm‘alndg of these financial statements,



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Smudi Rivalz)

N SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY

Halunce ut 1 January 2019

Met loss for the year
ither comprehensive loss
Balance at 31 December 2019 (Restated)

Ealance at 1 January 2020

et foss for the year
Oher comprehensive joss

Capital reduction Iy amortizing accumubidted
lorssizs (Mole 34b)

Halance at 31 December 2020

Fair vrlue Accumlated
Capilal rEsETOE [dsses Total

200,000, 000 (SH2928)  (97.B95.643) 101,521,429
- : [35,360,733)  (25,69,733)
(83.305) (372,400) (455.708)
TO0ATO000  (666.233)  (123,637.076) 15,695,991
200,000, 004 (666.233)  (12L637.776) 15,695,991
(12,379,088 (12, 379,088)
: 84,360 (1,086317) (971,957)

(122,829,650 : 122,829,650 -
77,170,350 (SB1873)  (14,243,531) 62,344,946

. ﬁj{g\

A

et

The sccompany notes are inegrated part of these financial stalements
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2020

(Saudi Riyals)
2020 2019 {Hesinted)

Cash flows from operating nclivities:
Met foss for the year (12,379,088) (25369,733)
Adjustments 1
Depreciation 9,112,126 9,192,614
A maottizations 181,912 [ 36434
Zakat estimated during the year 793 94 |.288.762
Zokm estimuted during the year for previous years 2,718,946 .
Provision for emplovees’ defined benefits lighilities 893,278 591,019
Provision for expected credit bosses |, 326,059 1175915
Bad debts during the year (52.016) (67,425)
Giles F[uuiﬁmu i [ 579475 I,171,652
Loan gupranice provision - related party (B62800) 8,063,390
Provision [or slow moving iems 1,426,484 927.060
Damage from provision for slow moving inventory (130,575) .
Provision fior impairment of inventory value 606,477 -
Tair vahue losses from investmenits ot fair value through profit or loss . 4,354,480
|mpawment gains | (losses) in the value of renl esiate investment (331,368) 1,008,252
Ciains from owmng invesiments - (1B
Profit on sale of property, plant ind equipment U {1 R 1. 1)

1,239,766 1,288,991
Changes int
Aceouniz receivable [(3,325,108) (335,971
Inventory (6,144,518) (669,137)
Prepayments and other debit balances 1 k02,960 (97.746)
Trading accounts paynble 1 O, D, 502 2478, 162
Accrued expenses and other credit balances (734,254) 1,653,097
Cash frem operations 4,145 841 4,491,395
Zakat paid during the year (1,176,924) (2,213,865
Emplovees’ definod benefits labilities peid (448,827 (433,414)
Net cash provided by operating sctivities 2,510,000 1.844,112
Cash Mows from investing activities:
Paid in purchase property, plam and eguipment’s {1,772 465) (2.403.591)
PPald in purchase ntangible assais . (1.211.748)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment’s 192,150 | 38,004
Net eash used in investing nctivities (1.580,315) (3478,335)
Cash flows from financing activities:
Due from related paries 15,062 (431.401)
lense obligations pikd (303 350) (223, T77)
Accrued dividend distribution {3483} {845)
et eash used in financing sctivities {271,771) (6%6,023)
Net change in cash and cash equivalents 8,004 (2,2%0,246)
Ciash and cash equivalenis at beginning of the year 1,723,876 4,014,122
Cash and cash equivalents at end of the yeur 2,391 880 1,723,876
Non-cash item:
Mt change fair value mvestments B4, 360 (43.30%)
Capital reduction by amortizing accumulated losses 122,829,650 4

W

Finan nager CEO ﬁ Authorized Member
The accompany notes are integrated pan of these financial ﬂlmwﬂ}—-

10



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company )

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{Sandi Riyals)

1. ACTIVITES .

o Industry And Development Company s a Saudi Joint Sk Company registered acco ing to the
:'In:Tﬁ::tiu] registration No. |01 0076996 issued in Riyadh dated 24710714 10H (eorresponding 1o | 8/05/1990).
The paid up capital of the Company is SR 200 Millions comprising of 20 million shares ai u par value of SR 10
oer share, During the year 2020, the Com y's capital was reduced by wnortizing the nccumulated losses o
SR 77,170,350 from 7,717,033 shares, esc valued at SR 10

The brincinal activities of the Company are the production of chilled and frozen meats, the manufaciure of food
pmdf::: éﬂ.amm froen potatoes, including (potate chips), the mianufacture of cereal m_t-krm foods in the
form of chips, and includes {com Mukes, chips ... etc.) and the mamifacture of pasta of oll kinds.

The accompanying financisl statemenis represents Company’s financial ststernent mnd the those of is branch's
which are as follows:

Commercial

Branch Name registration No, Astivity
Wafrah for Industry and _
Development CO. - Jeddah 4030108227 Marketing of the company’s products
Wafrah for Industry and
Development CO, ~ Damimem 2050028895 whaolesale of food and beverages
Wafrah for Indusiry and .
Developmem CO. ~ Khamis Mushait 5855339110 Marketing of the company’s products
Wafrah factory for and noodles 1010320947 Macaroni industry of all kinds
Rranch of Wafrah for Indusiry and Development 1011016029 Feed production
Wafrah food factory 1010320946 Foods industry from the grain
Wafrah factory for gram products 1010320952 Foods industry from the grain
Wafrah food factory 1010320955 Chilled and froeen ment production
Wafrah foctory for freezing vegetables L0103 20956 Pickles and industry

Branch of Wafrah for Indusiry and Development 1011016028 Dates drying and packing and
manufaciure of thelr products

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
(1) Applicable sccounting standards : _
These Financial Statements have heen prepared in accordance with Inemational Finsncial Reporting Standards

(IFRS) as endorsed in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabia and other standards and pronouncements thal are issued by
Saudi Organization for Cenified Public Accountanis (“SOCPAT)

(b} hasis of prepare financial statements:
The financial satements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except for certain financial pssets thal

are measured at fair value through OCI and certain financial assets at fair value measured through OCT m fakr
value aud financial asscts and liabilities aecounied ot mmortized cost

(¢} Functionnl and presentathon currency:
The financial stastements are presented in Suudi Rival, which is the Company's functional currency.
{d} Going concern:

The company incurred a loss of approximately SAR 124 million and approximately SAR 25.4 million for the
two years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019 respectively, n addition to the company's current Habilities as on
December 31, 2020 excoeding its cvrrent assets by SAR 15,836,730, which indicates Duse to the existence of
fundamental uncertainty, it may cast great doubt about the company's ability to survive as & going concern and
the company may not be ahie 1o realize its nssets and Falfil its obligations in the nonmal course of activity. The
management conducted an assessment of the company’s ability 1o continue as an existing entity. and conclided
that the company has the necessary resources 1o continue operating in the foreseeable future for o period of not
less than 12 months from the date of approval of these financial statements, The company s management secks
10 improve the financial conditions by increasing sales and reducing expenses in order 1o reduce the coar of
production to enhance the competitiveness of the company’s products and the management intends 1o benefit
from the initiatives launched by the Saudi Indusirial Development Fund through a request 1o reschedule the
balance of the existing loan, which will affect the balance of current Habilities, , and accordingly, these financial
stalements were prepared on the basis of going concern,

11



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES 10 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continuid)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Suudi Riyals)

3, NIF ,
The following s a swmmary of e MOSE IMPONant BCcounting policies foliowed by the company:

1.1 New standards, interprotations, and amendments adopied by the Company

There are no new standards that have been sswed, however, a number of amendments W the siandands are
effective from January 1, 2020 and are shown below, but they do not fave a materul impact on the financial
siatements of the company.

The following is an eutline of the new standards and amendments to the applicable standsrds for years
beginning on or afier January |, 2020

Amendments to the Internationul Financial Reporting Standard No. (3) - Definition of Business
Activity

This amendment reviews the definition of a business. Aceording fo the respanises received by the
International Accounting Standards Board, the application of the current directive is helieved 1o be very
complex, and lead to too many transactions that qualify to form a business combination

Amendments to International Accounting Stundurd No. (1) And International Accou nting Stamdard
No. (8) Regarding the definition of material

These amendments (o Internmational Accounting Standird No. { Iy "Presentation of Financial Statements®,
and International Accounting Standerd No. (B}, "Accounting Policies and Changes n Estimates and
Accounting Errors™ end subsequent smendiments 1o other International Financial Reporting Standards

| A consistent definition of materiality is used across all IFRSs and the conceptual frumework for finangial
reporting,

2 Clarify the explanation of the definition of essential.

1 lnclude some guidelings in International Accounting Standard No, (1) Regarding immateria] information

Amendments to International Financial Reporting Standard No. (%), Internationsl Accounting
Standard No. (39), and International Finuncial Reporting Standard No. (7) Reform of the Interest
Rate Index

These adjustments provide some reliefs in relation 10 the reform of the benchmark interest rate. The
exemprions relute to hedge accounting and have the effect that reform of the prevailing interbank interes:

rate should generally not ceuse the end of hedge accounting. Howewer, any ineffective hedge should
continue to be recorded in the profit or loss sistemenl.

Amendments 1o IFRS 16 *Leases™ in response (o the impacts of Covid-1% on tenants

Effective June . 2020, IFRS 16 has been amended 10 provide a practical way for lenants to caloulate rental
conceisions that srisc as o direct result of the COVID- 19 pandemic and onty if all of the followmg conditions
are et

A} That the change in lease payments resuls in » modified kease compensation that is substantially the same
as_ or less than, 1he lease compensation immedistely before the change,

B that any reduction in rental payments affects only payments due, beginning. on or before lune 30, 2021,
andl

) There should rot be any muterial change in the other terms and conditions of the lease agreement.

Bental concessions that meet these eriteria may be counted according to practical terms, which means that
the tenant does not need to mssese whether the rental concession Tuifills the definition of o remal
modification. Lessces apply other requirements in IFRS 16 in concession account

3-1 Standards issucd that have not yet been implemented

The followang is & statement of the new standards and amendments 1o the applicable standards for years

begmning on or after January 1. 2021 with early application permitted, but the company did not apply them
when preparing these financial siatements.



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contmued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 131, 2020
(Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3.1 Standaris issued that have not yet been implemented (Continued)

Amendments to 1AS 1, " Presentation of Financial Stutements” on the classification of labilities
These narrow-scope amendments 1o [AS 1, “Presentation of Financinl Staements” clarify that labilities
are clyssified as current or non-current, depending on the rights existing ot the end of the reporting period.
The ritttng is not affected by the entity's expectations or by events afler the reporting date (for example, the
receipt of o waiver or a breach of an undertaking). The amendment 3 so clurifies what IAS | means when
it refers to the settlement’ of an obligation.

Amendments to IFRS 3 and 1AS 16 and 37

. IFRS 1 “Business Combinations™ is an updwte of a reference in [FRS 3 for the conceptual frnmework for
finnncial reporting without changing the accounting regquirements for business combinations.

- Internanonal Accounting Standard No. 16, “Prapenty, Plant and Equipment” prohibits the company (rem
deducting from the cost of property, plant and equipment the armounis received from the sale of the ftems
produced while the company prepares the asset for its intended vse, lnstead. the company will recognize
these sales revenue and related costs in its profit or loss statement.

- international Accounting Standard No. 37, “Provisions, Lishilities and Contingent Assets™ specifies the
codts that 4 company inchudes when assessing whether the contract will cpuse a loss.

13 Annual amendments to IFRSs {2018-2020 cycle)

These amendiments are effective on or after January 1, 2021.

- IFRS 9. “Financial Instruments" clarifies the foes that the campany includes when performing a =1 0% test”
in crder 1o assess whether the recognitien of a financial Hability will be canceled.

. IFRS 16, “Leases”, eliminates the possibility of confusion regarding rental incentives by amending
Wustration 13 accompanying IFRS 16,

34 Carrent versos Non-Current Classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the statement of financial position hised on current/non-
current classifcation.

An asset is current when it 5

- Expected 1o be realized or intended 1o sold or consumed in the normal eperating cycle.

- Held primarily for the purpose of mading.

- Expected 10 be realized within twelve maonths after the reporting period, or

. Cash or cash cquivalen! unbess restricted from being exchanged or used to settle u lability for at leas:
twelve imonths after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified o8 non-curreit,

A lwblity is current when:

- It 1s expected 1o be setiled in the normal operating cycle,

- It is held primarily for the purpose of trading,

- It is due 10 be settled within twelve months afier the reporting period, or

- There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the linbility for ut least twelve months alter the
reporting period,

Defermed tax assets and linhilitics are classified as non-current assets and liabilities. All other liabifities are

claszified as non-current.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2030
( Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)
35 Property, plant and equipment’s

- Recognition and measurement _
lerms of property and cquipment are mensured al cost less aceumulated deprecintion and impalrment losses.
Cos includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset,
When parts of an item of property and equipmert have different uselul lives, they are sceounted for as ems
(major components) of propeny and equipment. .
Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determingd by comparing the proceeds
from disposal with the carrying amoum of property and equipment and are recognized nel within in the statement
of profit or loss.

Subsequent costs

The cost of replacing part of an itemn of property and equipment is recogniired in the carrying amount af the dem
if it is probable that the future ecanomic benefits embodied within the pan will ﬂl;m 10 the company and is cost
cin be mensured relinhly. The carrying amount af the repluced pait is derecognieed.

The eosts of the day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognleed in stalenient of profit or loss as
incurred.

- Depreciation

ltems of property and equipment are depreciated on a straight-line basis In smtement of income over the
estimated useful lives of cach component. Leased assets ane deprecisted over the lease term of on the shorier
usefiul lives of the assels

The estimated annual depreciation rates for propeny, plant wnd equipment during the current year arc the same
as for the previous year and details as follows:

Machinery and equipment’s 2.5-5%
Butldings I-15%
Tools 5-15%
Artesian wells 5%
Furniture and fixire 20=15%
Aar conditions 15 %
Motor vehicles 25 W
Fiming and equipment’s 10 %

3-6 Henl estate iny estmenis

Reeal estate investment is & property ncquired either 10 eamn rental income or to increase in value of both, but not
for the purpose of sefling it through the normal activ ities of the Company, It is not wsed for production or sapply
of goods or serviees or I%r sdministrative purposes. Investment properties are stated a1 cost and thelr fair values
are disclosed in the notes w the financial staterents. which are estimated annvally by an independent real estate
expert based on the market prices of those properties within an active real estate marker.

3-7 Imtangible assets

Imangiblc assets other than goodwill are measured at cost less accumulated amortizatian wnd accumuluted bosses
of impairment. i any.

Thve imtangible assels are amortized on & straight-ling basis over the economic life of 7 years,

Subsequent expenditure is capitalized only when it is probable that the future economic benefils assocised with
the expenditure will flow 10 the company, and 1he costs can be measured reliably.

The residuil valses of the intangible sssets. teir usefal lives and indicators of impairment are reviewed at te
end of each financial vear and adjusted for & future effect, if necessary.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Swudi Joint Stack Company)
WOTES TO THE FENANCIAL STATEMENTS [continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2020
( Saudi Rivals)

1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-8 Accounds receivible

Tracte receivables are recognised initially at fulr value and subsequently measurcd al amartised cost using the
effactive interest method, less provision for impairment. For impairment of financial assets refer o Note 3-1%

3% laveniory

limventorics are measured at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is determined using the weighted
average method. Cost includes all direct manufscturing expenditure based on the pormal level of activity mﬂ
transportation and handling costs. Net realisable vitlve comprises estimated seiling price less further produciion
costs o completion and sppropriste selling and distribution costs. Allowance is made. where necessary for slow
moving invemories. Cost of inventories is recognised as an expense.

3.10 Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash and banks balances amounts and demand deposits, which can be
converted into cash within a period of three manths or less (1F any).

3-11 Employees Benefits

Short Term Obligations

Liabilitics for wages and salarics and any other shart term bemefits thai are expected to be settled whally within
17 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognized in respect
of emplovees services up to the end of the reporting period and are mensured at the amounts expected 10 be paid
when the lighilities are settled. The labilities are presented as current employes benefit obligations In the
statement of financial position.,

Fost-Employment Obligations

Defined Contribution Plans

Contributions 1o defined comribution superannuation plans are expensed when the employoes have rendered
service emitling them 1o 1he contributions.

Retirement benefit in the form of Geneml Organizution of Socisl Insurance (GOSI) is a defined contribution
scheme. The Company has no ohligation, ather than the coatribution payable 10 the GOSL. The Company
recoanizes contribution payable to the GOSI as an expense, when an employee renclers te relutes) service

Defined Benefits Plans

The cost of providing benefits under the defined benefit plans is determined using the projected unit credit
method. Re-measarements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, are recognized immedintely in the
statement of financial position with & corresponding debit or credii 1o retined eamings through other
comprehensive income in the period in which they occur. Re-measurgments aie ot reclassified vo profit or loss
in subsequent periods.

The discoust rate for discounting the estimated future cash outflows is required 10 be based on the yigld on
corporate bonds of durstion and currency eonsistent with the liabilities. Where there is no deep market in
corporate bonds in the currency under consideration, the yields on government honds are used.,

Past service costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss on the enrlier of the date of the plan
amendment or curtailment and the date on which the Company recognizes related restriscturing costs Mt
interest is caleulated by applying the discount rite to the et defined benefin limbility. The Company recognizes
the changes in the net defined benefit abligation under “cast of revenue, *general and administrative expenses’
snd “selling and distribution expenses’ in the statement of profit or loss.

3-12 Accounts payable

Labilities are recogmized for amounts 1o be paid in the future for goods or services received, whether billed by
the suppliers or nod,



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Sandi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

313 Provisions

A provision is recognized if. a5 & result of a past event, the Company has & present legal or constructive
obligation that can be estimated reliably, and it is probnble that an outflow of cconomic benefits will be required
to settle the obligaton,

3-14 Estimated Zakat

Zakat ls provided on accrial basis in necordance with the Regulations of the General Authority for Zakat and
Income ("DZITT) in the Kingdom of Saudi Arabin, The aakat provision is charged 1o the sintemenit of profit o
losses, Any differences resulting from the final nssesamanis are recorded in the year of thels finaluzation.

Fakat is calculated on an scerual basis und is calculated on the basis of nel income adjusted for zakat during the
wear or on the basis of ket calculated according 1o the laws. Any differences in the provision previoushy
recopnized are setthed when the final approval is received by the General Authority for Zakat and Incotne

3.15 Related parties transactions

Related party
A related party is a person or entity that is related 1o the entity that is preparing its financinl statements.

{a] A person or & close member of that person’s family is related to 8 reporting entity if that person.
(i} has control o joint control af the reporling entity:
{11} has signitficant influence over the reporting entity; or
{ii1} is & member of the key mansgement perscnnel of the reporting entity or of » parent of the reporting
enfity,

(b An entity is related 1o 8 reporting entity il any of the following conditions applies;
(i} The entity and the reporting entity are members of the same group {which means that each parens,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary i related 10 the others).
(i) One entity i5 an associate or joint venture of the ather entity (or an associste or jolnt venture of & member
of @ group of which the other entity is 8 member).
{iti} Both entilies are joint venlures of the same third party.
{iv) One entity is 1 joint venture of o third entity and the other entity is an masociate of the third entity
{v} The entity is a post-cmployment benefit plan for the benefit of employees of either the reporting entity
or an entity related to the reporting entity. If the reporting entity is liself sich o plan, the sponsaring
employers are also reluted to the reporting entity.
(%) The emity is controlled or jointly contralled by a person identified m {al.
{viiy A person idemified in (aMi) has significant influence over the entity or s a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent of the entity )
{viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which it is @ part, provides key management personnel serviigs
10 the reporting entity or 10 the parent of the reporting entity
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEYELOF MENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (eontimaed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{Saudi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

316 Revenue recognition

Revenue is measurcd based on the sonsideration specified in a contract with customer and excludes amaount
eodlected on behalf of third parties.

The Company recognizes revenue when it transfers control over a product or service 10 B customer The
primciples in IFRS 15 are applied using the following five steps:

Step 1: Thi Company sccounts for a contrie with a customer when:

e The contract has heen approved and the parties arc comimitted:
= Each perty’s rights are identified;

« Payment terms are defined,

« The contract has commercial sabstance; and

« Collection is probable.

Step 2¢ The Campany identifies all promised goods or services in a contract and determines whether to
account for each promised good or service as o separate performance obligation. A good or service is
distinet and is seporated from nther obligations in the contract if both:

« The customer can benefit from the good or service separately o together with other resources that are
readily available 1o the customer; and
» The good or service is separately identifinble from the other goods or services in the contract.

Step 3: The Company determines the transaction price, which s the nmouni of conssderalion it expects o
he eniitled 10 in exchange for transferring promised goods or services 1o B cUstomer,

Step 4: The transaction price in an arrangement is allocated to each separate performance obligation based
on the reiative standalone selling price of the good or service being provided 1o the customer

Step 5: Revenu is recognized when control of the goods or services is ransferred 1o the customer The
Company transfers a good or service when the cusiomer asbtains control of that good or service. A castomer
abtains control of & goed or service if it has the ability to direct the use of and receive the benefit frewm the
good or service.

In comparative period, revenue is recegnized to the extent that it is probable thet the economic benefits

will flow 1o the Cotmpany and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardiess of when the payment s
roceived.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the considerntion received or recelvable, taking Into accoun
contractually defined terms of payment and excluding taxes or duty. The Lompany has concluded that it is

r:_:dprhxqu& in all of its revenue arrangements, has pricing latitude, and is also exposed 1o nventory snd
1t risks,

Significant aécounting judgments and estimates for revenue

The following is s deseription of the accounting policies and imporiant provisions of the main ectivities
thit the company penereLes ils revenues:

i A) Selling products

Revenue is recognised when comirol over those products or services is transferred, and it 15 when the
products or services are delivered to the customer, Delivery occurs when products are shipped 1o the
specified location, and the risk of depreciation end loss has been transferred (o the customer

I these contracts, the compeny s primarily responsible for fulfilling the obligation 1o provide food and
other speeific products. The company assumes imventory risk before the food products are trunsporied 1o
customers, In addition, the company has diserction in sewing prices for specific food products. The
company lso bears credit risk on these transactions as it is obligated 1o pay the supplier even if the
cisiomer failz 10 pay.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOFPM ENT COMPANY
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~OTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {eontinued)
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

1.16 Revenue recognition (continued)
Sigmificant sccounting judgmenis and estimates for revenue (continued)

{14 Discounts on sules volume _
Revenue is often recognized with sales volume discounts over 12 momhs Revenoe from these sales is
recognized based on the price specified in the contract, after deduction of the estimated discounts.

The comracted discoum rate and accunulated experience are used 1o determine the size of those discounts,
and revenue is recognized only to the extent that it is highly probable that the opposite will not occur. The
contraciual ebligation of expected discounts is recognized in the amount of amounis payable 10 customers
i respect of sales made until the end of the reporting period.

{C) Sales returns
Revenue is recognized minus sales retums.

The accumulated experience is used to estimate the amount of sales returns using the projected value
method, and revenve is recognized only 10 the extent that it Is highly probable that the opposite will not
oceur. Expected sales retums are recognized in the amount of smounis pavable 10 customers in respect of
sales made up to the end of the reporting period.

Revenue is the fitir value of the consideration received or receivahle against the goods sold, net of retums,

trade discount and rebates, The company recognires revenue when the customer obtuins the goods or
acknowledges their acceptance.

Products are mainly sold on & sales or return basis, and a return sales allowance 13 ealculated on the basis

of the expected return frean expired or damuged products, The expecied sales returms are offsel apainst
revenue with the associnled effect of the sales allowance.

Gioods are sold a1 significant discounts retrosctively on the basis of total sales over a | J-month perind
Revenue from these siles is recognized based on the price specified in the contract minus the estimated
discounts. Aceumulated experience is used 1o estimate and provide discounts und revenue is recognized fo
the most likely extent that there will be no material reversal,

There is no component of an existing financing component as snkes are made in either cash or term debt in
fime with market practice.

3-17 Expenscs
Expenses incurred by the Company consist of selling and marketing expenses, general and sdministrative
expenses and operating expenses. Production costs are charged at full cost of muierials, direst labor and
indirect industrial costs. The expenses resulting from the Company's effons related to the msrketing, sale
and distribution of finished produets are classificd es a separate tem under the heading of selling and
marketing expenses. Ciber direct and mdirect expenses relating W management that sre not related to the
production function or the sales and marketing function are classified as goner! and administrative
expenses. The joint expenses are distributed, if necessary, between administrative wnd general expenses,
seifing and marketing expenses and operaling cxpenses on o consistent basis. The accrual principle s
spolied in charging the financial period with administrative and gencral expenses and selling and marketing
expenses

1]



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (comtinwed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Saudi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

3-18 Financial Instruments

IERS 9 introduces new classification and measurement requirements for financial wssets. IFRS 9 requires all
financtal assets 1o be classified and subsequently mensured 8l either amortized cost or fair value. The
classification depends on the business model for managing the financial ssset and the contractual cash flow
charscieristics of financial asset, determined al the time of initial recouniton.

Financial assets ure classified into the following specified cotegories under IFRS 9:

« Debt instruments at amariized cost;

«  Dent instruments at fuir value through other comprehensive income ( FYVOCT), with gains or losses
recyeled to profit or loss on derecopnition;

s Fguity instruments ot FVOCL, with no recyeling of gains ar losses 1o profit or loss on derecognition; and
Financial assets ot fuir value through profit and foss (FVPL).

{4} Finuncial assets classified as amurtized cost

Dieht imsiruments that mees the following conditions are subsequently measured al amortized cost less
impairment ioss {except for debt invesiments thart are designated as at fair value through profit or loss on initial
recognition).

I The asset is held within @ business model whose objective is 10 hold assets in order 1o collect contractual
cash fows; and

2. The contracrual terms of the instrument give rise on specified dates to cash Mows thet are solely payments
of principal and inerest on the principal amount outstanding.

If' o financial asset does not meet both of these conditions, it 5 measured ol fair value.

The Company mukes an assessment of & business model s portfolio level as this best rellects the way
the business is managed and information is provided to management. In making an assessment of whether
an psset is hell within a business model whose objective is 10 hold assets n order o eollect contraciial
cash flows, the Company considers:

«  Management's stated policies and objectives for the porifolio and the operation of those policies in
practice;

e The risks tha affect the performance of the business model (and the financial sssets held within that

bisiness model) and, in particular, the way those risks mre manaped,

How management evaluates the performance of the portfolo:

Whether the management's strategy focus on earing contractual commission fneome;

The degree of frequency of any expected assel sales:

e reason for navy naser sakes; and

Whether assets that are sold are held for an exiended period of time relative to their contraciual matunty

or are sold shonly afier acquisition or an extended time before maturity

ln sssessing whether the contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest, the

Company will consider the contractual terms of the inswument. This will include assessing whether the

financial asset contains a contractual term that could chenge the timing or amount of contrachial cash

flows such that it would not meet this condition,

Income is recognired on an effective interest basis for debt instruments mensured subsequently

amaortized cost Intercst is recognized in the staement of profit or loss.

Db instruments 1ha are subsequently measured at amortized cost are subject to impairment




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOFPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company}
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Riyals)

i SIGN {Continued)
3-18 Financial instruments (continued)

(b} Financial assets designated us FYOCT with recycling
Deht instruments that meet the following conditions are subsequently messured pt FVOCE:

o The financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash Mows and selling the finaneia] sssets; and

e Thecontractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates 1o cash Mows that are solely
payments of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Ear debi financial instruments measured at FYOCL, commission income and impairment lasses of
reversals are recognized in the statement of income and compated in the same manier a5 fior financinl
assets measured at pmonized cost.

All ogher changes in the carrying amount of these instruments are recognized in other camprehensive
income and accumulated under the investmenl revalustion reserve. When these instruments are
derecognized, the cumulative gains or losses previously recognized in other comprehensive incoms
are reclassified 10 the sintement of profit or loss.

i¢} Financinl assets classified as FYPL

Investments in equity instruments are classified as ot FYPL, unkess the Company designates an
investment that is not held for trading as o FYOC] on initial recognition.

Debt instruments that do net mee the smortized cost of FVOCT criter are messured at FYPL. In
addition, debt instruments that meet the amortized cost criteria but are designated as at FVPL 0 avoid
sccounting mismatch are mensured at fair value through income statement. A debt instrument may be
designated as at FYPL upon initinl recognition if such designation eliminates or significuntly reduces
u mensurement oF recognition inconsistency that would arise from measuring assets or liabilites or
recopnizing the gains and losses on them on different bases. The Company has not designated any
debt instrument a8 FVPL since the date of mitial application of IFRS 9 (14, | January 3018

Debt mstruments are reclassified from amortized cost to FVPL when the business model is changed
such that the amortized cost criterin are no longer met. Reclassification of debt mwiruments that are
designeted as at FVPL on initial recognition is not allowed.

Fitancial assets ;1 FVPL are mensured a1 fair value ot the end of each reporting persod, with any gains
or losses aristng on re-megsurement recognized in statement of profit or loss

Commission income on debt instruments a5 81 FYPL is imcloded m the statement of profit o loss
Dividend income on investments in equity instruments a1 FVPL is recognized in the statement of

profit or loss when the Company’s right 10 receive the dividends ks estmblished in sccordance with
IFRS 15 Revenue from contracks with customers.

{d) Investmenti in equity instruments designated as FYOCT

On initial recognition, the Company can make an irevocable election (on an instrument-ty-

instrument basis) 10 designate investments in equity instruments as at FYOCL Designation as st

FVOCT is not permitted if the equity investment is held for trading

A financial asset or financial lability is held for trading il

# It is acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the near term;

= Oy initial recognition it is part of & portfolio of identified financial instruments that are managed
1ogether and for which there iz evidence of a recent actunl pattern of shost-term profit-taking, or

s |1 is u derivative (except for a derivative that is o financial guareniee contract or o designated and
effective hedging instrument).
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
3-1% Financial instroments {continued)

{d) Investment in equity instruments designated as FVOCI feontinued)

Inrvestments in cquity instruments 52 FYOCT are initially mensured ot fair value plus {ronsACHion costs
Subsequently. they are measured af fair value with gains and losses arising from changes in fair value
recogmized in other comprehensive income und accumulated in other reserves Guin and losses on
such eguity instruments are never reclassified 1o the statement of profit or loss and no impairment |s
recognized in the sistement of peofit or koss. Investment i unquaded equity instrumenits which were
previously accounted for at cost in aceondnnce with TAS 39, are now measured &t fair valoe, The
cumulative gain or Joss will not be reciassified to the siatement of profit or loss on disposal of the
invesiments.

Dividends on these investments are recognized in the statement of profit or loss when the Company’s
right 10 receive the dividends is esmblished in sccordance with 1AS 18 Revenue, unless the dividends
clearly represent a recovery of part of the cost of the investment

Fair value reserve includes the cumulative net change in fair value of cquity mvestment measured ai
FVOCL. When such equity instruments ane derecognized, the related cumulative amount in the fair
value reserve is wansferred 0 eccumulated losses.,

Impairment of Anancial assels

The Company recognizes a loss allowance for expected credit losses (ECL) on debt instrumants that
are measured st amortized cost or at FYOCL, lease receivables, rade recelvables, as well as on loan
commitments and financial guarantee contracts, No impairment loss is recognized for investments in
equity nstruments. The amount of expecied credit losses reflects changes in crelit risk since initinl
recognition of the respective financial instrument.

The Company applics the simplified approach 1o calevlate impairment on rade receivables and this
always recognizes lifetime ECL on such expasures, ECL on thess financial assets are estimated using
s Mow rare based on the Company’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors thar are
specific to the deblors, general economic conditions and an assessment of both the current as well as
the forecast direction of conditions ol the reporting date, including time value of money where
appropriate,

For all other financial instruments, the Company applies the general approach to caleulate impainnent
Lifetime ECL is recopnized when there has been o significant increase i eredit risk since inital
recognition and 12 months ECL is recognized the credit risk on the financial instrament has not
incrensed significamtly since initinl recogmition. The assessment of whether credit risk of the financial
instrument has increased significantly since initial recognition is made through considering the change
in risk of defauh occurring over the remaining life of the financial mstrument.

Measurement and recognition of expeeted credit losses

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of defuly, loss given defaul
{i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is o definlt) and the exposure gt default. The assessmant of the
probability of default is based on historical data adjusted by forward-looking mformation as described
above,

As for the exposure ot default for finincial nesets, this I8 represented by the pasets’ gross carrying
mmounl ol the reporting date, Exposure af defaull for of balance sheet items is arrived st by applying
 credit conversion factor to the undrmwn portion of the exposure

P2



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Riyals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

318  Financlal instruments (continued)

Where lifetime FCL is measured on a collective basis 1o cater for cases whene evidence of significant
inerenses in credit Fisk gt the individual instrument fevel may not vet be available, the financial nstrunients
are grouped on the following hasis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Company’s trade and other recelvibles), are nssessed for expected
credit bosses on an individual basis),

» Past-due status,

» Nature, and size industty of debtors; and

» External credit ratings where available. _
The Company recognizes un impairment gain or loss in the stilement of profit or loss for all financial
inatruments with @ corresponding adjusiment w their carrying mmount through o Joss allowanse sccount,
except for investments in debl instraments that arc measured at FYOC, for which the loss allowmnce is
recognized in prodit or josses satement and accumulated in the fair value reserve, and does not reduce the
carrving amount of the financial asser in the interim condensed statement of linecial position.

Derecognize of financinl assels

The Company derecognizes a financial asset only when the contractual rights to the cash fows from the assets
expircs; or it ransfers the financial asset or substantially all the risk and rewards of pwnership to snother entity

If the Company neither transfier nor retaing substantially ull the risks and reward of ownership and continues to
control the ransferred asset, the Company recognizes its retained imterest i the asset and associated labliity for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Company retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a
transferred financinl asset, the Company continues to recognize the financial asset and also recognizes 2
collateralized borrowing for the proceeds received.

Financial liabilities |
Financial lisbilities earried a1 amonized cost have been classified and measured st amonized cost using the
effective yield method.

For financtal lishilitics that sre designated as at FYPL, the amount of change in the fuir value of the finascinl
liability that i aitributable 1o changes in the credit risk of that liability is recogniced interim condensed ather
comprehensive income, unless the recognition of the effects of changes in the |iability"s credit risk mn interim
condensed other comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting mismatch in interim condensed
comprehensive income. Changes in fair valee anributable to & fnancial lasbility's credit risk are nod
subscquently reclassified to interim condensed comprehensive income

The Habdlity eredit reserve includes the cumulative changes in the fair vinlue of the financial linbilities designated
&5 o Fair value through profit or loss thet ere aitributable (o changes in the credit risk of these habilitgs aned
which would not create or enlarge accounting mismatch in interim condensed comprehensive Income. Amourt
presented in Nability credit reserve are not subsequently transferred 1o interim condensed comprehensive
mcome. When such mvestments are derccognized. the related cumulative amount in the lEability credil reserve
i transforred to retained eamings. Since the date of initial application of [FRS 9 (Le. 1 January 2018), the
Company has also not designated any financial liabiliny as at FVPL.

Derecognize of finaocial linbilities
The Company derecognizes financinl linbilities when, snd only when, the Company's obligations ore
dischamped, cancelled or expired.

319 Fareign currency Irjnsactions

Trensactions in forelgn currencies wre transleed into Seudi Rivals during the period at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dare of the transactions. Monetury assets and labilities denominnted in forelgn currencies ate
transiated into Saudi Riyals ut the dete of the financial statements w the exchange rates prevailing on thar date

Differences ansing from the translation of foreign currencies into Saudi Riyuls are recognized in the income
staternent. profits or losses.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company}

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
‘[Sau:ﬁ Rivals)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICTES (Continued)

4-20 Offsetting
A offserting is made between financial assets and financial linbilities and the net amount is reported n the
statement of firancial position only when l:'mdin? legal rights are available and alsc when they are aeitled on @
clearing hasis or the verification of the axsets an the settiement of liabilithes al the same time.

SIGNIFICANT JUL ENTS, ASSUMPTIONS AND ESTIMATES

In preparing these financial siatements, management has made judgements, estimates and assumptions thal
effect the application of the Company's secounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
income and expenses. Actual results may differ from these estimates

Estimates and jodgements are continually evaluated and are bised on historical experience and other factors,
including expeciation of future events that are believed 1o be reasonable under the circumstances. The estimates
and axsumptions that have a significant rick of causing a material adjustment 10 the carry g amount of assets
and Tabélities within the mexi financial year are addressed helow,

v 5

4.1 Judgements

In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the following judgements.
which have the most significant on the amounts recognised in the financial satements;

Operating leases

Mumapement cstablished on the basis of an evaluation of the terms and conditions for the operating lense
arrangements that not all the significant risks and rewirds of ownership of land and buildings leased for
warehousing and distribution will been transferred to the Company Consequently, the land and warchouse
buildings are recognized us operating leases.

4.2 Assumplions and estimates

(1) Impairment reviews

IFRS requires management to undcriake an annual test for impairment of indefinite lived assets and, for finite
lived nssets, 1o test for impatrment if events or changes in circumstances indicuie thst the corrying amount of sn
asset may not be recoverable,

Impairment testing is an area involving management judgement, reguiring inter alia an assossmnl gs W hether
the earrying value of assets can be supported by the net present value of future cash flows derived from such
wasers using cash flow projections which have been discounted at an approprinte fate In culculating the net
present value of the future cash flows, cerain assumptions are required fo be made in respect af highly uncertain
matters including mansgement’s expestations of,

a) growth in earmings before imterest, tax, depreciation and amanization (ERITDA), calcuiamted as adjusted
operating profit before depreciation and amortization.

b} timing and quantum of future capital expenditure.

¢) long-term prowth rates; and

d) selection of discount rates 1o reflect the risks imvolved.

) The amoant of mining reserves expected to be extracied during the relevant year.

Changing the assumptions selected by management, in particular the discount rate and growth rate RASLIPLAONS

us;: in the cash flow projections, could significantly affect the Company’s impairment evalustion and hence
results.



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS feontimued)
¥OR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Rivals)

'ES (continued)

4.2 Assumptions and estimates (continved)

{2) Impairment lusses on trade antd other receivables
Trade and other receivables are stated at their amortised cost as reduced by appropriate aliowances for estimated
irrecoverable amounts. Estimated irrecoverable amounts are based on the ageing of the receivabie balances and
historical experience adjussed appropriately for the future expectations. Individual trade receivables are written
off when management deems them not 1o be collectible,

{31 Mensurement of defined benefit obligations
The Company 's net obligntion in respect of defined benefit schemes is calculated by estimating the amount of
future benefit that employees have earned in retarn for their service in the current and prior periods, that benefil
is discounted 1o determine its present value, and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted
The preseni value of the obligation is determined based on actuarial valuation at the statement of finanial
position date by an independemt actuary using the Projecied Unit Credit Method, which recognises euch period
of service as giving rise to an additional unit of employee benefit entitiement wid measures The obligation is
measured of the present vatwe of the estimated future cash flows, The discount mies uscd for determining the
present value of the obligation under defined benefit pan, are determined by reference to US bond vields, (as
the Saudi Riyal is pegped to the US dollar), adjusted for an additional risk premium reflecting the possibility of
the linkage bemg broken,

(4] Estimate of zakat
Management estimates the zakat expenses according to instructions ad active law

(5) Determining whether the Company or a compuny pari of It Is acting us an agent or principal
Principies of IFRS 15 are applied by idemifying each specified (ie. distinct) good or service promised to the
customer in he contract and evalusting whether the éntity under considerntion obimins conirol of the specified
good or service hefore it is transferred 1o the customer, This assessment req ires significant judgement bused on
spectfic facts and circumstances,
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contimued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Riyals)

Ihe tebie below shows the rght to use assets balance in and the deprecintion charged as follows:

Lands Totul

Cogt _

The balntce ot heginning of the year 3246170 3,245,170
Additions daring the year 257,548 257,548
The balance at end of the year 3,503,728 3,503,728

lawted

The batance ot beginning of the year 353,600 351,600
Charge for the year 405,173 405,173
The balance at end of the year 758,773 758,773
Net book value

December 31, 2020 1,744 955 1.744,955%
December 31, 2019 2892570 1,892,570

Additions to 1o the right to use the assets during the year ended December 31, 2020 amounting to SAR
257,558,

The lease obligations as o1 the end of the year are as follows:

31 December 2020 1 Decembar 1019

e

Non-current iease obligations 2416127 15303244
Current lease obligations e 419,348 i 351,023
Tuotal lease abligations 2835475 2981267

The finance costs from the recognized lease obligations during the year ended December 11, 2020: SAR
188,497 (December 31, 2020: SAR 190.020),

7. INTANGIBLE ASSETS. NET

Accounting
programmer Total

Cost
The balance &t beginning of the year 1,212,748 1,212,748
Additions daring the year z -
The batance a end of the year 1,312,748 1,212,748
Agcumulpted depreciation
The bolance m beginning of the year 136,414 136,434
Charge for the year |B1.912 181,912
The balance at end of the year 318346 J18.346
Net bunk value
Diecembor 31, 2020 B 402 K94,402
December 31, 2019 1,476,314 1,076,314




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) .

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimed)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Saudi Rivals)

e MVLE.
% 3 December 2020 31 Ducember e

East Asw Company for Development

anid Agricultural Investment (Note Ba) 14,285% 10,600,900 10,000,000

Jgnnat for Agricultural Investment - under liguidation

(Note 8b) o 11.1% 7.0350.000 7,050,000

Rakhas Agricultural Investment and development

Company tE-:w Bl 4620 1612717 LBIRT
4 18,862,717 18,662,717

Fair value losses from investments at fais value
through profit o loss {Note Bid) {18,682.717) {18,662,717)

) Investment in East Asia Company for Development and Agricultural lnvessment (Closed Joint Siock

Company ) represent an invesiment of 14.285 % from the company’s paid up capital smounting w SAR
70 million

b} Investment in Jannat for Agricubural Investment (A Caud] Limited Labilites Company) represent an

jnvestment of 11.1 % in the company’s capital which amounts 1o SAR 63 millson and the remaining
balance of SAR 50,000 represents the company's shares in pre-opesating expeises.

¢} lnvestment in Rakhan for Agricultural Investment (an Egyplian joint stock company) represents an

investment of & 628% of the paid-up capital of 80 million Egyptisn pounds {equivalent to 18,692,753
Sauchi rivals), 85 on March 6, 2019, the partners of Jannat Agricultural Investment Company decided { A
company under |iquidation (assignment of tnvestment in Rakhaa for Agriculteral Investment (an
Egvptizn joim stock company) by transferning the ownership of the shares and shares owned by the
company in Rakhaa for Agricultural Investment (an Egyptinn jomt stock company) which i 62,184
shares to the partners of Jennat Agricultural [nvestment Company (& company under lguidation)
Directly, each according to his share in the company. Accordingly, on Degember 11, 2019, the pwnership
of 6,907 shares {equivalent to SAR 1,612,717 was transferred from the shares of Rakhaa Agricultural
Investment Company (un Egvption joint stock company ) fram Jannat Agricultural Investment Company
(a company under liquidation) in faveur of Walra Industrinl and Developmem Compuny. Due o the
inahility 10 reach the fair value of Rakhao Agriculiursl Investment Comspany (an Egyptian jounl stock
company) in the Egyptinn Stock Exchange market, & totul impasrmesit of the investment value in the
company has been proven, with a value of SAR 1,612,717, which constitutes 100% of the investment

value.

) During the year 201 & fair value losses his been recorded in Janna for Agricultural Invesunent Company

- under liguidaion amounting 10 SAR 3,287,562, and during the year 2017 fair value losses has beeii
recorded in Junnat for Agricultoral lnvestment Company - under [quidation amounting 13 SAR
1,762,418 With 2 total fair value losses of the investment value of Jannat SAR 7,050,000 representing
100% of the value of the investment, and fair value losses has been recorded in East Asia Company for
Development and Agricultural investment amounting to SAR 758,562

During the year 2018 fuir value losses has been recorded in Bast Asin Compuny for Development (]
Agricultural investment amounting w SAR 6,499,675, During the year 2019 fuir value losses has been
recorded in East Asia Company for Development and Agriculursl investment umousnting to SAR
7 741,763 with n toaa! fair value losses of the investment value of East Asin Company for Development
representing | 00% of the value of the investment, and fair value losses has been recorded in Rakhan for

Agricultural Investment smounting to SAR 1,612,717 which constitutes 100% of the value of the
Imvesiment.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL ST ATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Rivals)

&) The company has guarantee obligations represented in the company's share of 8,063 300 Saudi rivals, or
£.628% of the loan puarsnice amount grunied to others {Rakhan Agricultural Investment and
development Company - Egyptian Joint Stock Compary by the Saudi Fund for Development at an
amount of 93,5 million Saudi rivals. A full-valoe allocetion has been created 1o meed this obligaton

The loan guaraniee provision - related party movement represedts s fionl lesoas
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Beginning of the year 8,063,350 .
Addition during the year - 5,063,390
Pridl during the vear (HA2,800) :

Total loae guarantes provision 7,100,490 1,063,390
Current porion of loan guarnics

provision - reloted party (2.250,183) [2212.913)
Non-current portion of loan

guaraniee provision - related party 4,950,407 SR504T7

o. REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS, NET
1] December 2020 3 December 2019

| ands invesiments - Jizan 10,127,708 11,137,708
Real estate nvestments impairment provision (9-1) (674 884)  (1,008.251)
10,452,824 10,119,456

9.1 Movement in provision for impairment of real esiate lnvestments
31 December 2020 A1 Pecembsr 2019

Opening Bulance 1, 008252 -

Iepairment (gaing) / losses in the value of real estute

investment {133,368] | 08252
674,884 1,008,252

Investment represent land purchased by the Company based on the Boards decision al ils meeting dated
04/1272014 and consists of |8 plots in mehsmmedia, Jizan with a total area of 10,803.60 square meters
purchased from Tanmiyal Commercial Investment Comphy.

The fair valise of investment properties as at 31 December 2020 mmounted 1o SR 10,623,960 (31 December
2020 amounted to SR 10,119,456). According 1o the evaluation process carried out by the real esiate
evaluator, Manassat Real Estate Office, bolder of license number 1210000163 {Independent evalustor
sccredited by the Sandi Council for Accredited Residents),
10, INNESTMENES 135 AN E : A . .

INCOME

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Cost
Beginning balance for the year 1,155,699 1,254,699
Ending balance for the year 1,255,699 1,255,699
Evaluution djustment
Beginning halance for the year (666,237) (582,928)
Unrealizable gain during the year B4, 360 (83,3035)
Ending balance for the year (581,873 (666,233)
Mol book value H73.H826 ZR9, 46

This account represent the invested shares in National Petrochemicsl Compainy (Yansab) by 0.007875% os
at 31 December 2020 and 2019, respectively.

bt}



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{ A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

[ Saudi Riyals)

ACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE. NET
> 31 Decembor 2020 31 December 2019

Pl
Account reccivable 30,042,395 26,717,290
Provision lor expected credit losses (11-1) {9.411,600) [£,237,442)

Ml 20620, TRS 18,459,548

11-1 Movements in the provision for expected credit losses were an follows:

31 Deeember 2020 11 December 26019

S e forere
Balance, beginmng for the year 8,257,442 7,789,468
Provision for the year 1,206,174 £15.99%
Bad debis during the yvar {52,016) {67.415)
Ralunce. ending for the year 9,411,600 8,257 441

12. IS ¥, N

31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Raw material 10,031,601 0610406
Finished goods 11,322,473 5. 778423
Spare parts 3,588,348 3,409,075
Dedust: 24,942,412 18797 504
Provisson for show moving items (12-1) (3,087,154) {1,791.245)
Impairment provision {606.477) -
Net 21,248,791 17,006,680

12-1 Movesments in the provision for slow moving items were as follows:

31 Decembuer 2020 31 December 2019

Balance, beginning for the year 1,791,245 Bb4, 185
Provision for the year | 426,484 927,060
Damage for the year {130,575) -
Balance, ending for the year 3,087,154 1,791,245
13. PH
31 December 2020 31 December 1019
Advance o suppliers 5, 185,756 6,860,923
Emplovee receivables 1.583,703 1. E3g 417
Prepaid expenses 137,504 467,354
Refundable deposit 76,313 76,313
Accrued revenue 64,906 57,997
Letters of credit - S00,000
Others . 51,140
T049.184 985,144
Daduct:
Provision for expected credit losses (1,029,207) (9089,322)
Net 6,019,977 5,942,822

13-1 Movements in the provision for Provision for expected credii losses were as follows:

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Balunce, beginning for the year ) ¥09,327 J68, K06
Provision for the vear |19 RES B40 516
Balanece, ending for the vear 1,829,107 509,311




WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMF ANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {contnued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 11, 2020

{Saudi Rivals)

14. pu

The relsted partics are represested in the dealings with the sister company, non-exeéutive members of the
bhourd of directors, managing dircctor and senior management employess of the company, where Lhe
emplovees of the higher management ure the persons who exercise authority and responsibility in
plasning, managing and monitoring the company's astivities. directly or indirectly, including the
FRERETS.

During the normal course of its operations, the Company bad the folkowing significant transactions with
related parties during the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019 shong with their balunces:

Transuction amount Balopee asof
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2020 019 1020 019
Finanoe:
Jannat Agricultural lnvestment Company 55,498 431,402 . 160,638
Rakhas Agricultural Investment and
development Company 725576 - 725578

115576 'I'EIE‘ H

The prices and terms of these transactions are carried ol accanding to the terms ol dealing with related
parties. The related panties shall achigve the following:

Mamin Ralationship
Jannm Agriculiural Invesiment Company Sister company
Rakhan Agricaltural Investment and

development Company Sister company

Tire following detzils of remuneration snd compensation paid to non-cxecutive board members and senlor
management personnel:

Mon-exccutive board members and senfor

munagemont persennel 3 December 2020 31 December 2019
Salnries and compensation 2,096,032 2156475
Allowances 824,143 | 01931
Annunl moentives 131,634 68.503

3,051,811 3,266,909

1S, CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Cash in hand 49211 25,311
Cash at banks 2,342,669 | 698,563
2,391 80 1,723,876

I6 ]

- STATUTORY RESERVE
in accordance wilh_thu Saudi Arabian Companies Regulations and the Company's siatue of, 10% of the
ann.!.-J net income is required 1o be transferred to a statutory reserve umtil this reserve cyuals 30% of the
capital, This reserve is not available for distribution to shareholders

i
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
SNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimaed)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Rivals)

.

LONG TERM GOVERNMENT LOAN

The company obtained & long-term loan from the Saudi Industrial Development Fund on 080572012 m
order 1o finance the establishment and expansion of frozen vegetnbles and potazoes production plant, the
total of the approved facilitae loan SR 34,000,000, The loan is repaynisle in o period of six-years and the
semi-annial installments start from August 1, 20135 During 2016, the loan was rescheduled, with the firm
crstallment due after the rescheduling on 2/1/2019. This amount was piid in SAR 1,000,000 during 2013,
SAR 1.500,000 in 2016, and 3,500,000 Saudi riyals during 2018, bringing the total value of the loan as of
December 31, 2020 the amount of SR 28,000,000 During 2019, the loan was rescheduled, with the first
installinent due after the rescheduling on 171272020, and has not been pepard. The lonn is secured by
mortgaging the entire food plant to fully produce the mest and the food plant to completely freere the
vegetahes i favor of the fund as colluteral for the Jomn. The loan agreement contains pledges that include,
umong other things. 10 reduce [uture capital expenditures 10 maintain certain Fnancial ratios

The long term loan movement represents s follow:

31 December 2020 31 December 019

Beginning of the year 28,000,000 18,000,000
Paid during the year . .

Total long-term government loan 18,000,000 28,000,000
Current portion of Jong term government loan ( 12,000,000) (3,000, 000)
Non-current portion of long lerm government

loan £ 6,000, 004 25,000,000

17-1 Finance charges
Finance charges &8s a result of the govermment loan for the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to
630,000 SAR (2019: 300,000 SAR)

EMPLOYEES' DEFINED BENEFITS LIABILITIES

18-1 General description

The Company has employee benefit linbilities represented by end of service benefits und payments due
upon leaving the service under the Saudi Labor Law,

18-2 Defined bencfits linbilities expense
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Salaries gronwth mte 4,305 4.50%
Diiscaunt rate 240%% <.90%
Current service cost 697,760 6335, 364
Imterest cost on benefil obligation 193,518 235,455
Cost charged to statement of profit or loss 893,278 B91,015
Experience adjustiments 1056317 ITLA00
Cost included in Other Comprehensive Income 1,086,317 AT AN

Totnl benefit expense 1,949 595 1,263,419

il



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

{A Sandi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL 5TA

TEMENTS {continued]

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Saudi Riyals)

18, EMPLOYEES' DEFINED BENEFITS LIABILITIES (continued)
18-3 Movement in present vulue of defined henefit obligation

19,

Balance at beginting of the vear

[ urrent sEfvics cost

Iriterest cosl

Bereflt paid

Actuarial loss on end of service

Ending balance of the year
R o AN

Accrued expenses salaries and vicution
Accrued finance charges

Advance pavment from cusiomers
Other accrued expenses

20. SALES FROVISIONS

2.

1.

Balance a1 beginning of the year
Additions during the year
Paid | Adjustments during the year
Balance at ending of the vear
t

Balance at beginning ol the year
Additions daring the year
Paid /| Adjustments during the year
Balance at ending of the year

Tuotal

AL ] L

3] December 2020 31 Decomber I{IE

T.257 . 245
697,760
195,518

(448827}

| 56,317

B, 758013

6,427,240
555,564
235,458

(433,414)
172,400

7.257,245

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

2,358,096
630,000
355172

1,583,771

4.917.639

22715214

2,339,580
1,047,099

5661 803

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

3,176,375 T, H26,865
13,134,547 13,008,179
(14,526,295) (12,658.869)
784,627 1,176378
1,087,806 265,664
1,962,301 2,046,004
(2,090.028) {1,223,862)
900,079 | 87 806
1,684,706 3,264,181

Accred dividend distribution batance which appears in the accompanying sistement of financial position
represents the unpaid balance for amounts decided in the common general assembly meeting, and dividend
distribution for the previous years which are not received by the sharebolders up o December 31, 2020

ESTIMATED ZAKAT PROVISION
a) Status ol ussessments

The Company has filed zakat returns with the GAZT for all years up to 31 December 2019 and obtaned
the tempornry Zaknt Cenificate fior the year ended 31 December 2019,

The General Authority for Zukat snd Income has issued initial assessments for the years J008 10 2011,

and based on these stipulations, the company objected to it and received o stipulation which resuled
in znkat differences of SAR 4,021,423, Zakat differences hive been established within the estimated

Zakat provision for the 2018,

12



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Sandi Joint Steck Company)
WOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
{Saudi Rivals)

22. ESTIMATED ZAKAT PROVISION (continued)

a)

Status of assessments (continued)

During the vear 2020, the General Autharity for Zakat and Income issued inilial assessments for the
venrs from 2014 w 2018, and based on these assessments, the company objecied to them. and the
modified zakat assessment was recelved, which resalted in zakat differences of SAR 3,582,009, and
the company objected 19 the amended zakal assessment and & modified zakat assesament was received
at & valoe of SAR 2,728,946, and the company objected 10 it and awaited o response from the General
Authority for Zakat and Income, and the akat differences were proven in the zakat estimate for the
year 2020

The yeurs from 2019 w 2020 are subject 1o review by the General Authority for Zakat and Income

by Provision movement
31 December 2026 3] December 2019
Batance, beginning for the vear 4,046,301 4,971,408
Provision for current year 793,951 1,288,762
Znkat durng the venr for previous years 2,728,546 -
Zakat paid during the year (1,176,924) (2,213,869)
Bulance, end of the year 6,392,174 d 46,301
¢) Zakat base

The provision for zakat charge is based on the following:
31 December 2020 31 December 201%
Sharcholders’ equity - us per GALT 77,170,350 200,000,000

Beginning provisions and other adjustments 72,201,159 §7,724 289
Book valee of loog term assets - as per GAZT

(95,540.216) (115,486,735)

Adjusted losses (808,126) (97,895,643
Onther deducts (32,397,880) (2,332,011}
Adjusted net profit for the year 10,432,955 8,215,242
Zakat base 31,058,842 50,145,140
Lakat calcolated 791,951 1,288,762

. 7akat is ealeuinted on the basis of the adjustad net profil or the Zaknt base, whichever i greater.

. Zakat for 2019 is due. st the mie of 3.5% of the adjusted net profit and 1 57768% of the mkal base
minus the sdjusted profit, whichever is higher. Zakat for 2020 is due at the rate of 2.5% of the adjusted
net profit or 2.58474% of the zakat base minws the adjusted profit, whichever s higher

d) Adjusted net profit for the year
The adjusted net profit for the year reconcilistion is os follows:
31 December 2030 31 December 2019
Net lozs for the veur (B.836,191) (14,080,971)
Adjustments 19,289,146 12316213
Adjusted net profit for the year 10,432 955 §,235,242

b



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company) ,

NOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

{Saudi Rivals)

Fha 31 December 2020 31 December 2019
Sales of fachory 41,837,908 18,178,633
s i i 33,794,595 $3.247.738
Sules of food and mest factory L3.8946,419 £ 00 551
Sales of Breakfast cereals factory 3,135,779 40,426

Total 8,814,701 57,871,349
Sales discount (13,134.547) (13,008,379)
Sales returns {1.902.301) {2,048, 004)
Net 83,777.853 81,816,966
4. h 1
31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Emplovees’ salaries & benefis 5,865,194 b, 608, 760
Fees and subscrsption Bb0,BRE B 462
Right of used assets depreciations 405,173 143,600
I nsurance 186,238 SIR0R7
Repair and maimenance 229229 105,367
pations 224,433 226,121
Amortization of intangible assets 181,912 136,434

Allowances for presence in board
of dircctor meeting 135,000 1 36,004
Hospitality and cleaning 84,813 92,082
Bonuses 64,550 |15 414
Advertisement 61,837 119,701
Bank commission 54,226 22907
Stationery and printing 41,588 720
Telephone and postage 33,079 35,777
Electricity, water and oils 23,304 32,584
Rents 3,971 140,373
Others 487,636 394,388
D J45,073 9,951,177

25. SELLING AND DISTRIBUTION EXPENSES
31 December 2019
31 Decom ber 2020 (Hestuted)

Employees’ salaries und benefits 5,722,835 6,560,814
Rents | .Gdh, 153 | 083,155
Transport and shipment 1,370,506 {898,503
Depreciation 1,284,093 1.359.439
Electricity, water and nils 1,108,268 R5d, 443
Subscription 1,100,633 611,397
Repair and maintenance 613,431 436,645
Temporary lsbor 546,165 615,756
Insurance 500,608 560505
Commission 4h1 404 1,165,780
Damage 421,746 627,803
Advertisemisnt 365,090 294,419
Sales promotion 176,714 F35,T68
Telephone and postage B6,113 B 5640
Stationery and printing B 869 56,871
Dahars 261,216 Add 02K

lﬁl'l'l.!& 17,189,675
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {continued)
FOR THE YEAR EXDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Sandi Rivals)

26, QTHER REVENUE

¥ ¥

31 December 2020 31 December 2019

Rental Income 99, (1D §34 000
Sates of propeny, plant and equipment 192,143 70,711
Sales of scrap 107,291 27,089
Cinims from owning investments (Note 82) - 1,612,717
Cither reverue | B9 094 73,681

Net 1,482,535 2,420,198

LOSS PER SHARE

Loss per share s calealated from the net loss of major operations by dividing the net loss of mijor
operations for the year by the weighted average riintber of shares during the year. Loss per share s
caleulated from the net Joss for the year by dividing the net loss for the year by the weighted average
pumber of shares during the year.

Diluted loss per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 and ending 31 December 2010 was caleulated
by dividing the net loss from mam operations and net loss for the year by the weighted wverage number
of shares outstanding during the year adjusted for the potential reduction in cedinary shares. As there is
no E:ingnﬂ tiability for equity instruments, the dilued loss per share are not different from basic loss
per :

The weighted average number of shares for the two years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2011% was reached by taking the effect of the capital decrense from the beginning of the nesrest offered
period (January 1, 2019) 10 comply with the requirements of TAS 33.

The fallowing table reflects the oss and share dota used in the basic ond diluted loss por share
computitions:

31 December 2020 31 Decomber 2010

Net loss for the yeur (12.379,088) {213,169,713)
Loss per share - basic and diluted {1.64) (3.1
et loss from the main operation (6:454,577) (10,482.052)
Lass per share - basic and diluted (0.54) (1.36)
Weightet avernge number of shares
outstanding for hasic & diluted EPS 7,717,035 7,717,035

. EINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value measnrement

Fair value represents the nmount may be callected from the psset sale of o boost 10 conven commitment
between knowledgenble parties on the same tenms and dealing with others and depends on the fmir value
measurement of the following conditions:

l. \m the principal market for the asset or lisbility, or

1 the most advantageous market for the asset or liubility i the ahsence of a principal market the
company shoubd be able to handle through the most advantageous market.
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Smudi Riyals)

8. thm

When mensaring the fair value of an assel or & liability, the Company uses markel ohservable data as far
as possibile. Fair values are categorized into dif¥erent levels in a fuir value higmrchy based on the inputs
used in the valustion technigues as follows:

- Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical nssets or liakilities.

- Level 2 inputs other than quoted prices included in Level | that we observahle for the nssel o
lighility, either directly or ndincctly.

- Level 3 inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on ohservable marker daia (unobservable
inputs]. |f the inputs used 10 measure the fair value of o finsncial assel ot falr valoe measures,

The Company recognizes iransfers between levels of the fair value hierarchy at the end of the reporting
pericd during which the change has pecurred.

Manngement believes that its estimates and judgments are reasonable and adeguuie

The fair values of financial assets and labilties are not significantly different fram their carrying valies
in the finamcial statements as of December 31, 2020

Fair value levels

Details of financial instruments carried at fair value wre os below:

11 December 2020 Amount Level 1 Lavel 1 Level 3
trvestmmens determined by fakr value
through ather comprehensive incame 673,826 673,826

1] December 2019
Investrments determined by fair value
through other comprehensive income 580,406 TBY A6

Transfers between Levels | & 2
There have been no transfers between Level | and Level 2 during the reporting periods

" The company s exposure o the fnlhﬂwm risks from fits use of financial instruments

- Credit risk
- Liquidity nsk.
- Market risk
- Capatal manigement
Thg'l note presents information about the company's exposure to each of the above risks, the company’s
E:jp?ﬂ:f“ policies and processes for measuring and mManaging risk. and the company's management of
Risk management framework

The management has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of compony's risk
management framework.

The company's risk management policies are established o icentify and analyses the risks faced by the
Company, 10 set appropriate risk limits and controls, and 1o monitor risks and adherence to [mits,

Risk management policies and sysiems are reviewed regularly to reflect changes in market conditions and
the company’s activities. The company. through its traiming and mansgemnent standards and procedures,
aims 1o develop a disciplined and constructive control environment in which all employees understand
their roles and ohligrtions.

The Company's Audit Committce monitors the management’s performance in monitoring compliance with

the Company’s risk management policies and and reviews the adequacy of the rish mana
framework m relntion 1o the risks facing the Company. B I

Financial instruments included in the siatement of financial position include mainly cash and cash

equivalents. recervables, other assets, investments, creditors, accrued linbilities, loans and other nom-
eiarrent Habifitizs

Ia



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY

(A Saudi Juini Stock Company) |
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (contimoed)
FOR THF YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Riyals)

29, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT feontinued)

Credit risk

Credit Fisk represents the risk that the Company will incur a financial loss ws o result of a fatlure ul'lrlu
customer or counterparty to meet a financial instrumznd with its contrsctunl obligations. These risks arise

mainly from it bank balances, trade snd pther receivables.
The Company's exposure 1o credit risk is mainly affected by

demograpiic nature of the Company's cuslomers, including the defuult
i aﬁ&l risk

it which the custnmer operates, has o lower impact on

e

specificity of each customer. The
risk of the agtivity and the country

The carrying amount of financinl issels represents the maximum amount that financial assets may be
exposed 1o credit risk al the statement of financial position date 15 follows:

Reguested valug as of
31 December 2020 31 December 2009
Accounts receivable, net 20,630,795 | B 459 B48
Cash and cash equivalents 2,342,669 1,658,365
Agerued revernoe 65,906 §7.997
Other assets 5816567  BAITATI
—_maasseyT _ NG63I8NI
Ligquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will be unable (o meet its financial liabilities as they fall due 1o
its fimancial limbilities that are sentfed through the provision of cash or other financial assets The

Company’s liguidity management is 1o ensure, 1o the extent posgible,

sufficient liquidity to meet its obligitions when it hecomes

puy able

that the Company always maintains

under normal and stressful

circumstances without incurring unacceptoble Josses of risks that may affect the Company’s reputation.

The Company ensures that it has sufficient cash to cover expected operating expenses including coverage
of fingncial liahilities but withoot any potential impact on difficult and unpredictable conditions such as
nsturnl disasters. In addition. the Company maintains a redit source from its banks W meet any sudden

cash needs.

The contrsctim! maturitics of non-derivative financial labilities are as follows:

Non-derivative financiel lisbilities Lens than n Maore thao a Mo fxed
vear yuur maturity Teowl

31 Derember 2020

Crovermment bsan 13, COEH, o 16,000,000 - 28008, 000
Trade payables = . 4,726,057 34.726,057
Luen puarantes provison - reloted party 2.250,183 4 9490, 407 . 7200590
Rental obligation 419,348 2416,127 . 1,835,478
Owersubscribed payable - - 1,258,720 3,158,720
Arcrued dividend digtribution - - 1,194,832 1194833
Accrued expenses and other liabifities 1354 508 - 2371131 E i ]
Estimated Takat priovision 6392274 - 6,302,274
Bales provisions 1684, 706 . i, GA4, 708
Employees’ defined benefits Habiliies . B, 758013 B,758013

15,301,009

23,366,534

310,743 98,976,296

37



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
{A Saudi Joint Stock Company) !

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Saudi Rivals)
29, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)
Liguidiey risk {continued)
Nan-terivilive limmncinl Habifliies Lass than a Piare than & Mo Mhoedd
year YEur mafurity Tatal
Crovemamenl kot 3, e (40 2% 000, 60 - 1R, 04M 000
Trade ptnl::ln - . 24,719,065 14,719,084
Loan guarantee provision - related paty 2212913 SB30477 . B 63,3
Remai obligutrons 151,023 2530244 - 2,881,267
Orversubsoribed payable - . 3,158,720 3,158,710
Accraed dividend disiribution - = |, 198,305 1,198,308
Accrued expenses and other liabilites 4,064,573 - 1,396,920 5,661 H95
Estimated Zakat provision 4,046,301 . . 4,846,401
Sales provislons 1264181 . 3,164,081
Emplovees” defined bencfits Habilitaes . = T 337,243 7,157,245
14,939,391 33,380,721 40,030,158 LLRL] g

Market risk

Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market prices such as foreign exchange rates, murabaha
rates and eguity prices that offect the Company's profits or the value of the Company's linancial
i trments.

The objective of market risk management is to control the extent 1o which the Company s exposed 1o
marker risk within scceptable limits in addition to maximizing returns.

Currency risk

It is the rick that the value of a financial instrument will fluciue due to changes in foreign exchange mtes,
Management monitors fluctuations in foreign curmency exe rites, and believes that the Company is
not cxposed 10 significam currency risk since the Company did not undertake signilicant transactions in
currencics other than Saudi Riyal and US Dollurs, The Saudi Rivol is pegasd to the US Dollar, sccordingly,
balances and ransactions in US Dollars are not considered Lo represent significant curency risk.

Capital Management

The Company's capital menagement policy is to maintain a strong capital base to maintain shareholders,
creditors and market confidence as well as the continued development of the company's future activities.

The capital consists of ondinary shares, oulstending shares outstanding, retained esrnings and non-
controdling imterests,

The management menitors the return on equity, which s determined by dividing net operating profit on
shareholders’ eguity.

The Company aim to maintain the balance between the highest return pessible in case of borrowing as
high s possible and the preference and safery of a strong capital center,

The Company did not have any change in capital management during the year and the Company is not
subject W any external capital requirements,

30. ADJUSTED CAPITAL RATIO

A December 2019

31 December 2020 i restated))
Liabilines at the end of the yvear 66, B33, 749 47,7V 2401
Less: Cush and cash equivalents {2,391 880} (1,723,876}
Net Habilities 64,461,869 45,988 315
Adjusied cagpital 62,344, M6 73,695,991
103, 40% 1), T5%
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WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020
(Saudi Riyals)

3. SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Company ‘s operations are principally comprised of one operating segment, which s manufacturing.
producing and marketing food products as of the date of the sccompanying financial statements.
Accordingly, segiment nformation is not applicable. Furthermore, Mast of the Company's operations arne
conducted in Saudi Arabia.

32. ADJUSTMENTS

LN

The adjustments are s follows:
The company s management did not calculate the due commission provision for the year 2019, which
resuited m a difference of SAR BOB,1 17, und it was not recorded af the end of the Mscal year of 2019

The impact of the above on the financial saiements is as follows:
The effect of the smendment on (he babance shet as of December 31, I019;

Amount recorded Ralance afler
previously Adjustment adjustment
3] Deeember 2019 eflect 31 December 2019
Apcumulated losses (122,820,659 (BNE.117) (123,637,776}
Aceroed expenses end other credit balances 4 BE3TTE RO 17 5,661 8093

The Impact of the smendment on the stotement of comprehensive insomé for the yéar ended December 31,
pLIl L

Amound récarded Balunce after
previsusly Adjustment acjustment
A1 Decembaer 20149 effeei 2] Dezember 2019
Selling and markeling expenaes [ lb481.558) (BOE, | 1T {17.200.875)
Skare loax:
From the net loss from main operstions (048] [0.88) {1.38)
Froem the net Joss of the vear (1.23) [2.06) 320

N

On 3 March 2021, the losn restructuring by the Saudi Industrinl Development Fund, with the first payment
due after restructuring on 28/1/2021.

The manngement believes that there are no significant subsegquent events since the end ol the year that
may affect the financinl position of the company, except for what has been mentioned

1%



WAFRAH FOR INDUSTRY AND DEVELOPMENT COMPANY
(A Saudi Joint Stock Company)

NOTES TO THE FINANCLAL STATEMENTS (continued)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2020

(Saudi Rivals)

3. SIGNIGICANT EVENTS

A) In response to the spread of the Covid- 19 virus around the workd and the resulting disruption of social
and econoimic activities i those markets. the compiity's mansgement has proactively assessed jts
impact on its operations and his taken & series of preventive measures, including forming teams and
ongolng crisis management processes, to eisure the health and safety of its employees. And its
customens, consumers and spcicty as o wider range as well 85 ensuring the continulty of supplying s
products in all its markets. Whereas, the food industry in general has heen exempt from the various bans
and restrictions imposed by the varions regulaory authorithes including the exemption from curfew
hours Hased on these factors, the company s management believes that the Covid-19 epidemic did not
have o significant impact on the company's financial statement results that were reported for the year
ended December 31, 2020, with the exception of a decrease in the vegetable factory”s sules about 16.5%
of 2 value approximately SAR 19.5 million compared with the similar period with the previous vear
Om the other band, sales of the rest of the other factories incrensed, especially the products of the meat
and breakfast cercal manufacturers, as a result of the expansion of private production, (which
compensated for the losses of the company's main product - the frozen potatoes of the vegetable factory ),
In view of the continuation of the pandemic, the curment economic encertainry and the slowdown in
econemic growth, the company is monitoring the siustion closely, especially in the pext few months,

end the company expects the situation to gradually improve and hopes that the outbreak of Covid-19
will end this year.

B) The Extraordmary General Assembly in its meeting held on 13 Sha'ban 1441 H corresponding 10 April
&, 2020 mpproved the recomimendation of the Board of Directors 1o reduce the company’s capital in
exchange for amontizing the acoumulated losses amounting 10 SAR 122829650 1o become the capital
after the reduction of SAR 77170350 with & percentage of 61 4% of the caplial by cancelling
| 2,282,963 shores of the company.

35, APPROVAL OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The financial slafements were approved by the Board of Directors on 16 Shaban [442H (29 March 202 1),



